



Learn today LEAD TOMORROW!

# Supporting Children with Medical Conditions (previously called - Managing Medication Policy)

REVIEW DATE:

September 2025

"The Academy believes that inclusive practice is central to developing quality teaching and learning. As such we endeavour to provide a supportive framework that responds to pupils' needs and overcomes potential barriers for individuals and groups of pupils and to ensure that pupils of all abilities and needs are fully included in the life of the school. The ethos of this statement underpins all Oldbury Academy's policies."

# **CONTENTS**

| Introduction  | 3    |
|---|------|
| 1. Roles and Responsibilities   | 3    |
| 1.1 Parents and carers are responsible for:                             | 4    |
| 1.2 The Governing Body are responsible for:                             | 4    |
| 1.3 The Headteacher is responsible for:                                 | 4    |
| 1.4 Staff who manage pupil's medication are responsible for:            | 5    |
| 1.5 All school staff are responsible for:                               |      |
| 1.7 The NHS school health service is responsible for:                   | 5    |
| 1.8 Other health care professionals, including GPs are responsible for: | 5    |
| 2. Managing Medicines Safely  | 5    |
| 2.1 Prescribed Medicines  |      |
| 2.2 Controlled Drugs  | 6    |
| 2.3 Non – Prescription Medicines  | 6    |
| 2.4 Managing Medical Needs  | 6    |
| 2.5 Administering Medicines   | 7    |
| 2.6 Self Management   | 7    |
| 2.7 Refusing Medicines  | 7    |
| 2.8 Record Keeping  |      |
| 2 .9 Offsite Visits and Sporting Activities                             | 7    |
| 2.10 Storing Medicines  | 8    |
| 2.11 Disposal of Medicines  | 8    |
| 2.12 Emergency Procedures   | 8    |
| 2.13 Coordinating Information   | 8    |
| 2.14 Staff Training   | 8    |
| 2.15 Confidentiality  | 8    |
| Appendix 1  | 9    |
| Common Medical Conditions   | 9    |
| ASTHMA  | 9    |
| EPILEPSY  | . 10 |
| DIABETES  | . 11 |
| ANAPHYLAXIS   | . 12 |
| Other Polices Linked to the Medication Policy                           | . 13 |
| The Legal Requirements / Implications for the Academy                   |      |
| Appendix 3  | . 15 |
| Forms   | 15   |

#### Introduction

The purpose of this policy is to give advice to all staff in the situation of a student requiring medication as a matter of routine or in an emergency at the academy.

This policy has been developed using statutory guidance from the Department for Education document "Supporting pupils at school with medical conditions" December 2015.

Medicines will only be accepted into the academy when essential, that is only where it would be detrimental to a student's health if the medicine were not administered during the academy day. Where possible medicines should be prescribed in dose frequencies which enable them to be taken outside of academy hours. It should be noted that medicines that need to be taken three times a day could be taken in the morning, after academy hours and at bed time.

Medication should be prescribed by a doctor and always be provided in the original container as dispensed by a pharmacist and include the doctor's instructions for administration and dosage. In some exceptional circumstances students may need to take non-prescribed medicines for a specific short term condition. Non-prescribed medication will not be kept in the academy unless prior written permission has been obtained from parents/carers.

Parents have the prime responsibility for their own child's health and should provide the academy with information about their child's medical condition. Parents, and the student if applicable, should obtain details from their child's practitioner (GP), paediatrician or if needed, other specialist bodies may also be able to provide additional background information for staff.

Many students will at some time have short term medical needs, some student's however have longer term needs and may require medication on a long-term basis to keep them well e.g. well controlled epilepsy. Others may require medicines in particular circumstances, such as student's with severe allergies who may need an adrenaline injection. Students with severe asthma may have a need for daily inhalers and additional doses during an attack.

Most students with medical needs are able to attend the academy regularly and can take part in normal activities, sometimes with some support. However, staff may need to take extra care in supervising some activities to make sure that they and others are not put at risk.

### The Aim of the Policy is

- To implement procedures relating to the management of medication in the academy, to ensure that everyone, including parents, are clear about their respective roles
- To put in place effective management systems to help support individual children with medical needs
- To make sure that medication kept in the academy is handled responsibly
- To help ensure that all academy staff are clear about what to do in the event of a medical emergency

# 1. Roles and Responsibilities

#### 1.1 Parents and carers are responsible for:

- ensuring their child is well enough to attend the academy
- providing the school with sufficient information about their child's medical condition and treatment or special care needed
- reaching agreement on the school's role in helping with their child's medical needs
- completing consent forms detailing their child's medical needs
- updating the academy in writing of any changes in their child's condition or medication
- · providing sufficient medication and ensuring that it is correctly labelled
- replacing supplies of medication as needed and disposing of their child's unused medication
- giving written consent where their child is self-administering medication
- keeping their child at home when they are acutely unwell.
- ensuring nominated adults are contactable and notifying the school of any change in contact numbers

#### 1.2 The Governing Body are responsible for:

- ensuring that the academy has a policy in place for supporting pupils in school with medical conditions
- ensuring that pupils with medical conditions are supported to enable the fullest participation possible in all aspects of school life
- making sure that the academy insurance arrangements provide full cover for staff acting within the scope of their employment
- expecting teachers and other staff to use their best endeavours at all times, particularly in emergencies
- emphasising that in general, the consequences of taking no action are likely to be more serious than those of trying to assist in an emergency
- ensuring that willing staff have appropriate training to support pupils with medical needs
- satisfying themselves that any training has given staff sufficient understanding confidence and expertise

#### 1.3 The Headteacher is responsible for:

- ensuring the school's policy is developed and effectively implemented
- ensuring that designated staff liaise with the appropriate health care professionals
- ensuring that parents' cultural and religious views are always respected
- ensuring that all staff are aware of the school's policy for managing medication
- seeking parents' agreement before passing on information about their child's health to other academy staff and sharing information with parents to ensure the best care for a pupil
- ensuring that all staff receive proper support, advice and specific training where necessary
- ensuring that appropriate procedures are in place and accurate records are maintained for pupils with medical conditions

#### 1.4 Staff who manage pupil's medication are responsible for:

- taking part in training where required and seeking awareness of possible side effects of the medication and what to do if they occur
- liaising with the NHS school health nurse service and other health care professionals regarding pupil medication as required
- supervising pupils who self-administer medication and recording this information.
- ensuring that medication is received, stored and issued in accordance with the academy policy
- ensuring that the appropriate documentation is completed by parent/carers
- bringing any issue or concern relating to the medication procedures to the attention of the Headteacher

#### 1.5 All school staff are responsible for:

- understanding the nature of the condition for pupils with medical needs in their class and being aware of when and where the pupil may need extra attention
- being aware of the likelihood of an emergency arising and what action to take if one occurs

#### 1.7 The NHS school health service is responsible for:

- notifying the school when a child has been identified as having a medical condition that will require support in school
- produce individual health care plans for pupils with medical needs in conjunction with the pupil's parent/s or carers
- supplementing information provided by parents and the child's GP
- advising on training and supporting academy staff, who are willing to administer medication
- giving advice to parents and staff.

#### 1.8 Other health care professionals, including GPs are responsible for:

- informing the academy about a child's medical condition, where consent has been given by the parent or the child
- providing advice where appropriate on developing healthcare plans
- providing support where possible from specialist teams for specific conditions such as diabetes or epilepsy
- liaising with the School Health Service.

# 2. Managing Medicines Safely

All medicines maybe harmful to anyone for whom they are not appropriate. It is the responsibility of those managing medication in the academy to ensure that when medicines are administered that the risks to the health of others are properly controlled. Medicines should only be administered in school when it would be detrimental to a child's health or school attendance not to do so.

#### 2.1 Prescribed Medicines

Medicines will only be accepted into the academy when essential, that is only where it would be detrimental to a student's health if the medicine were not administered during the academy day.

Medicines should never be accepted that have been taken out of the container as originally dispensed nor make changes to dosages on parental instructions.

If medicines are prescribed in dose frequencies which enable them to be taken outside school hours they should not be held in school. It should be noted that medicines that need to be taken three times a day could be taken in the morning, after school and at bed time.

#### 2.2 Controlled Drugs

Controlled drugs should be kept in a locked cupboard under the control of a designated member of staff. Although a child who has been prescribed a controlled drug may legally have it in their possession, passing it to another child is an offence.

When administering / self-administering these drugs, the designated member of staff must ensure the correct procedures and record keeping are followed, paying particular attention to accurately recording the date, time and dosage.

#### 2.3 Non - Prescription Medicines

In some exceptional circumstances students may need to take non-prescribed medicines for a specific short term condition. Non-prescribed medication will not be kept in school unless prior written permission has been obtained from parents/carers using consent form E. The medication should be passed to the delegated member of staff and locked in the first aid room. Students should not carry non-prescription medication with them at school and if found on students the medication will be confiscated and parents will be contacted. A child under 16 should never be given aspirin containing medicine unless prescribed by a doctor.

Prior to issuing non-prescription medication, e.g. pain relief, the maximum dosage and the time last taken should be checked before issuing.

#### 2.4 Managing Medical Needs

The academy will need sufficient information about the child's medical condition to ensure the right level of support is put in place. If the child's medical needs are inadequately supported this may have a significant impact on the child.

A written health care plan will be developed as appropriate for each child and this will be done in conjunction with the parents and health care professionals.

The health care plan usually includes details of the student's condition, special requirements, any side effects from medication, what constitutes an emergency, what action to be taken in an emergency, what not to do in an emergency, who to contact in an emergency.

Parents should be advised that a copy of the completed health care plan is held on the child's record on Sims in order that staff can readily access this information.

#### 2.5 Administering Medicines

No child under 16 will be given medicines without their parent's written consent. Only designated staff with appropriate training will be permitted to administer / issue medication.

Before giving medicines to a student the following should be checked: -

- The student's name
- Prescribed dose
- Expiratory date
- Written instructions provided by the prescriber on the label or container.

If there is any doubt about the procedure, medicines should not be administered until it has been checked with either the parent or a health care professional.

A record of all medication administered to a student will be kept at all time by the responsible member of staff.

#### 2.6 Self-Management

Whenever possible, students, where appropriate will administer their own prescribed medication. If students are able to administer their own medication, the responsible member of staff will supervise them on every occasion and record the details in line with the policy.

#### 2.7 Refusing Medicines

If a student refuses to take medication, they should not be forced to do so, but this should be noted in the records and any agreed procedures followed as set out on the student's health care plan. Parent should be informed of the refusal on the same day.

#### 2.8 Record Keeping

Good records demonstrate that staff have exercised a duty of care. Records offer protection to staff and proof that the correct procedures have been followed.

#### 2.9 Offsite Visits and Sporting Activities

The school will ensure arrangements are in place to allow students with medical needs to participate in school trips and sporting activities. Additional safety measures or reasonable adjustments may need to be taken and staff must be aware of the child's medical needs and relevant emergency procedures.

Any restrictions on a student's ability to participate in PE or any other physical activity should be recorded in their individual health care plan.

Some students may need to take precautionary measures before or during exercise and may need to be allowed immediate access to their medicines such as asthma inhalers. Staff organising sporting or offsite activities need to be aware of how the medical condition will impact on the child's participation. They must assess the risks to students and consider what reasonable adjustments can be made to allow students to participate fully and safely.

#### 2.10 Storing Medicines

Large volumes of medicine will not be stored. Medicines that have been prescribed for an individual student should be stored in accordance with product instructions (paying particular note to the temperature) and in the original container in which it is dispensed. The container should be clearly labelled with the name of the student, the name and dose of the medicine and the frequency of administration.

All emergency medicines, such as asthma inhalers and epi pens should be readily available and should not be locked away. Emergency medication is stored in individual containers in the first aid room with child's name and photo on the front to ensure the correct box can be located quickly in an emergency.

#### 2.11 Disposal of Medicines

Staff should not dispose of medicines. Parents are responsible for ensuring that date expired medicines are returned to the pharmacy for safe disposal. Parents should collect medicines at the end of term, if they are unable to do so the medication will be sent home on the last day of the term with the student.

#### 2.12 Emergency Procedures

It is important that all staff are aware of what to do in an emergency and should be aware of the individual health care plans, which will include the instructions of how to manage a student who has specific medical needs.

A member of staff should always accompany a student to the hospital and should stay until the parent arrives. Health care professionals are responsible for decisions on medical treatment when parents are not available.

#### 2.13 Coordinating Information.

The school's First Aid/Medical Officer will share information regarding students with medical needs to other members of staff. The school's First Aid/Medical Officer will liaise with the NHS School Health Nurse, parents/carers and academy staff.

#### 2.14 Staff Training

A health care plan may reveal that further information about a medical condition or specific training in administering a particular type of medicine or dealing with an emergency may be required. Staff should not administer medication without training.

The academy will ensure that where training needs are identified for specific medical conditions that this training will be given, with support from the school health nurse, to the appropriate staff.

#### 2.15 Confidentiality

It is the academy's policy that all staff will treat medical information confidentially. This will be agreed with the student where appropriate or otherwise the parent, who else should have access to records and other information about their child.

If information is withheld from staff, they should not be held responsible if they act incorrectly in giving medical assistance but otherwise act in good faith.

### **Appendix 1**

#### **Common Medical Conditions**

#### **ASTHMA, EPILEPSY, DIABETES AND ANAPHYLAXIS**

#### INTRODUCTION

The medical conditions in children that most commonly cause concern in schools are asthma, diabetes, epilepsy and severe allergic reaction (anaphylaxis). This section provides some basic information about these conditions but it is beyond its scope to provide more detailed medical advice and it is important that the needs of children are assessed on an individual basis.

#### **ASTHMA**

#### What is Asthma?

The most common symptoms of asthma are coughing, wheezing or whistling noise in the chest, tight feelings in the chest or getting short of breath. Not everyone will get all these symptoms, and some children may only get symptoms from time to time.

Children with significant asthma should have an individual health care plan.

#### **Medicine and Control**

There are two main types of medicines used to treat asthma, relievers and preventers. Usually a child will only need a reliever during the school day. **Relievers** (blue inhalers) are medicines taken immediately to relieve asthma symptoms and are taken during an asthma attack. They are sometimes taken before exercise. Whilst **Preventers** (brown, red, orange inhalers, sometimes tablets) are usually used out of school hours.

Children with asthma need to have immediate access to their reliever inhalers when they need them. Inhaler devices usually deliver asthma medicines.

Children who are able to use their inhalers themselves should be allowed to carry them with them. Inhalers should always be available during physical education, sports activities and educational visits. For a child with severe asthma, the health care professional may prescribe a spare inhaler to be kept in school.

When a child has an attack they should be treated according to their individual health care plan or asthma card as previously agreed.

#### An ambulance should be called if:

- the symptoms do not improve sufficiently in 5-10 minutes
- the child is too breathless to speak
- the child is becoming exhausted
- · the child looks blue

#### **EPILEPSY**

#### What is Epilepsy?

Children with epilepsy have repeated seizures that start in the brain. An epileptic seizure, sometimes called a fit, turn or blackout can happen to anyone at any time. Seizures can happen for many reasons. Most children with diagnosed epilepsy never have a seizure during the school day. Epilepsy is a very individual condition.

Seizures can take many different forms and a wide range of terms may be used to describe the particular seizure pattern that individual children experience. If a child does experience a seizure in school, details should be recorded and communicated to parents including:

- any factors which might possibly have acted as a trigger to the seizure e.g. visual/auditory stimulation, emotion (anxiety, upset)
- any unusual "feelings" reported by the child prior to the seizure
- parts of the body demonstrating seizure activity e.g. limbs or facial muscles
- the timing of the seizure when it happened and how long it lasted
- · whether the child lost consciousness
- · whether the child was incontinent

This will help parents to give more accurate information on seizures and seizure frequency to the child's specialist.

#### **Medicine and Control**

Most children with epilepsy take anti-epileptic medicines to stop or reduce their seizures. Regular medicine should not need to be given during school hours.

Triggers such as anxiety, stress, tiredness or being unwell may increase a child's chance of having a seizure. Flashing or flickering lights and some geometric shapes or patterns can also trigger seizures. This is called photosensitivity. It is very rare. Most children with epilepsy can use computers and watch television without any problem.

During a seizure it is important to make sure the child is in a safe position, not to restrict a child's movements and to allow the seizure to take its course. In a convulsive seizure putting something soft under the child's head will help to protect it. Nothing should be placed in their mouth. After a convulsive seizure has stopped, the child should be placed in the recovery position and stayed with, until they are fully recovered.

#### An ambulance should be called during a convulsive seizure if:

- it is the child's first seizure
- the child has injured themselves badly
- they have problems breathing after a seizure
- a seizure lasts longer than the period set out in the child's health care plan
- a seizure lasts for five minutes if you do not know how long they usually last for that child
- there are repeated seizures, unless this is usual for the child as set out in the child's health care plan

#### **DIABETES**

#### What is Diabetes?

Diabetes is a condition where the level of glucose in the blood rises. This is either due to the lack of insulin (Type 1 diabetes) or because there is insufficient insulin for the child's needs or the insulin is not working properly (Type 2 diabetes).

About 1 in 550 school-age children have diabetes. The majority of children have Type 1 diabetes. They normally need to have daily insulin injections, to monitor their blood glucose level and to eat regularly according to their personal dietary plan. Children with Type 2 diabetes are usually treated by diet and exercise alone.

Each child may experience different symptoms and this should be discussed when drawing up the health care plan. Greater than usual need to go to the toilet or to drink, tiredness and weight loss may indicate poor diabetic control, and staff will naturally wish to draw any such signs to the parents' attention.

#### **Medicine and Control**

The diabetes of the majority of children is controlled by injections of insulin each day. Older children may be on multiple injections and others may be controlled on an insulin pump. Most children can manage their own injections, but if doses are required at school supervision may be required, and also a suitable, private place to carry it out.

Children with diabetes need to ensure that their blood glucose levels remain stable and may check their levels by taking a small sample of blood and using a small monitor at regular intervals. They may need to do this during the lunch break, before PE or more regularly if their insulin needs adjusting. Most older children will be able to do this themselves and will simply need a suitable place to do so.

When staff agree to administer blood glucose tests or insulin injections, they should be trained by an appropriate health professional.

Children with diabetes need to be allowed to eat regularly during the day. This may include eating snacks during class-time or prior to exercise. If a meal or snack is missed, or after strenuous activity, the child may experience a hypoglycaemic episode (a hypo) during which blood glucose level fall too low. Staff in charge of physical education or other physical activity sessions should be aware of the need for children with diabetes to have glucose tablets or a sugary drink to hand.

Staff should be aware that the following symptoms, either individually or combined, may be indicators of low blood sugar - a **hypoglycaemic reaction** (hypo) in a child with diabetes:

 Hunger, sweating, drowsiness, pallor, glazed eyes, shaking or trembling, lack of concentration, irritability, headache, mood changes, especially angry or aggressive behaviour

Each child may experience different symptoms and this should be discussed when drawing up a health care plan.

If a child has a hypo, it is very important that the child is not left alone and that a fast acting sugar, such as glucose tablets, a glucose rich gel, or a sugary drink is brought to the child and given immediately. Slower acting starchy food, such as a sandwich or two biscuits and a glass of milk, should be given once the child has recovered, some 10-15 minutes later.

#### An ambulance should be called if:

- the child's recovery takes longer than 10-15 minutes
- the child becomes unconscious

Some children may experience **hyperglycaemia** (high glucose level) and have a greater than usual need to go to the toilet or to drink. Tiredness and weight loss may indicate poor diabetic control, and staff will naturally wish to draw any such signs to the parents' attention. If the child is unwell, vomiting or has diarrhoea this can lead to dehydration. If the child is giving off a smell of pear drops or acetone this may be a sign of ketosis and dehydration and the child will need urgent medical attention.

#### **ANAPHYLAXIS**

#### What is anaphylaxis?

Anaphylaxis is an acute, severe allergic reaction requiring immediate medical attention. It usually occurs within seconds or minutes of exposure to a certain food or substance, but on rare occasions may happen after a few hours.

Common triggers include peanuts, tree nuts, sesame, eggs, cow's milk, fish, certain fruits such as kiwifruit, and also penicillin, latex and the venom of stinging insects (such as bees, wasps or hornets).

The most severe form of allergic reaction is anaphylactic shock, when the blood pressure falls dramatically and the patient loses consciousness. Fortunately, this is rare among young children below teenage years. More commonly among children there may be swelling in the throat, which can restrict the air supply, or severe asthma. Any symptoms affecting the breathing are serious.

Less severe symptoms may include tingling or itching in the mouth, hives anywhere on the body, generalised flushing of the skin or abdominal cramps, nausea and vomiting. Even where mild symptoms are present, the child should be watched carefully. They may be heralding the start of a more serious reaction.

#### **Medicine and Control**

The treatment for a severe allergic reaction is an injection of adrenaline (also known as epinephrine). Pre-loaded injection devices containing one measured dose of adrenaline are available on prescription. The devices are available in two strengths – adult and junior.

Should a severe allergic reaction occur, the adrenaline injection should be administered into the muscle of the upper outer thigh. **An ambulance should always be called.** 

Staff that volunteer to be trained in the use of these devices can be reassured that they

are simple to administer. Adrenaline injectors, given in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions, are a well-understood and safe delivery mechanism. It is not possible to give too large a dose using this device. The needle is not seen until after it has been withdrawn from the child's leg. In cases of doubt it is better to give the injection than to hold back.

The decision on how many adrenaline devices the school or setting should hold, and where to store them, has to be decided on an individual basis between the school, the child's parents and medical staff involved.

Where children are considered to be sufficiently responsible to carry their emergency treatment on their person, there should always be a spare set kept safely which is not locked away and is accessible to all staff. In large schools or split sites, it is often quicker for staff to use an injector that is with the child rather than taking time to collect one from a central location.

Important issues specific to anaphylaxis to be covered in the healthcare plan include:

- anaphylaxis what may trigger it
- what to do in an emergency
- prescribed medicine
- food management
- precautionary measures

# Other Polices Linked to the Medication Policy.

First Aid Policy

## Appendix 2

### The Legal Requirements

There are a number of legal requirements and implications that the Academy is aware of regarding the management of medication. This section summarises the main legal provisions that affect the Academy's responsibilities for managing a student's medical needs. Additional information about relevant legislation is detailed in the DfE document, Supporting Pupils at School with Medical Conditions.

#### **General Background**

The Academy is responsible for the health and safety of the students in their care. The legal framework for schools dealing with the health and safety of all their students derives from health and safety legislation. The law imposes duties on the employer. Community Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and NHS Trusts also have legal responsibilities for the health of residents in their areas.

#### Staff administering medicine

There is no legal or contractual duty on staff to administer medicine or supervise a student taking it. Support staff may have specific duties to provide medical support as part of their contract. But any member of staff may need to take action to assist a student in an emergency.

#### Staff 'Duty of Care'

Anyone caring for children including teachers and non-teaching staff have a common law duty of care to act like any reasonable prudent parent. Staff need to make sure that students are healthy and safe. In exceptional circumstances the duty of care could extend to administering medicine and/or taking action in an emergency.

# **Appendix 3**

# **Forms**

| Form A | Parental red | quest for | academy to | administer | medicine |
|--------|--------------|-----------|------------|------------|----------|
|        |              |           |            |            |          |

Form B Non-prescription medication

Form C Referral to school Health Nursing Service

Form D Sickle Cell Care Plan

# Request for Medication Administered by Academy or Self-administered

The academy will not administer medicine unless you complete and sign this form, and the Headteacher has agreed that academy staff can administer medication.

# **Details of pupil** Surname \_\_\_\_\_ Date of birth \_\_\_\_\_ Male/Female \_\_\_\_ Address Post Code \_\_\_\_\_ Form Group \_\_\_\_\_ Condition/Illness \_\_\_\_\_ Medication Name/Type of medication (as described on the container)\_\_\_\_\_ For how long will your child take this medication? Date dispensed Full directions for use \_\_\_\_\_\_ Dosage and method Special precautions (if any) Known side effects: Self-administered (yes or no) Procedures to take in an emergency \_\_\_\_\_

#### **Emergency Contact Details**

# Contact 1 Name of contact: \_\_\_\_\_ Telephone number: Daytime Evening Relationship to pupil: Address of contact: Post code \_\_\_\_\_ Contact 2 Name of contact: Telephone number: Daytime \_\_\_\_\_\_Evening\_ Relationship to pupil: Address of contact: Post code \_\_\_\_\_ \*Please note: It is essential that both contacts can be contacted by phone **Parental Agreement** I understand that I must deliver my child's medicine to the academy in the original containers and collect from the academy any medication that has passed its expiry date. I accept that this is a service which the academy is not obliged to undertake. Name (print) Date \_\_\_\_\_Signature \_\_\_\_

Relationship to pupil:

# Non-prescription medication

In some exceptional circumstances students may need to take non-prescribed medicines for a specific short term condition. Non-prescribed medication will not be kept in the academy unless prior written permission has been obtained from parents/carers. All medication should be handed in to the appropriate member of academy staff with the completed and signed form.

**Details of pupil** 

| Surname   |
|---|
| orename(s)  |
| Date of birth Form Group                                |
| Condition/Illness                                       |
| <b>Medication</b>                                       |
| lame/Type of medication (as described on the container) |
| for how long will your child take this medication?      |
| full directions for use                                 |
| OosageTiming  |
| Special precautions (if any)                            |
| Parent / Carer consent                                  |
| Pate Signature  |
| Relationship to pupil:                                  |

 $\hbox{U:$\oA\label{th:condition} Algebraiched System. Policies. OCOS\ Medication\ Policy. docx}$ 

# Form C

# Sandwell and West Birmingham Hospitals **NHS**



**NHS Trust** 

## Referral to School Health Nursing Service

| SCHOOL I   | neaith                          | nurs     | )III | j Serv   | ice        |          |           |          |          |         |            |              |
|--|---------------------------------|----------|------|----------|------------|----------|-----------|----------|----------|---------|------------|--------------|
| Surname  | e:                              |          |      |          |            |          |           | Fore     | name:    |         |            |              |
| DOB:   |                                 |          |      |          |            |          |           | NHS      | No:      |         |            |              |
| M 🗌 F  | =                               | chool:   |      |          |            |          |           |          | GP:      |         |            |              |
| Home Ad  | ddress:                         |          |      |          |            |          |           |          |          |         |            |              |
| Parent la  | anguage                         | Spok     | en / | Written  | :          |          | Conta     | act Nu   | mber:    |         |            |              |
| Parental   |                                 |          |      |          |            |          |           |          | Name:    |         |            |              |
| Parental c   | onsent s                        | hould    | be o | obtained | d on all r | eferra   | ls. If no | ot, plea | ase clea | rly sta | te the rea | sons why:    |
|  |                                 |          |      |          |            |          |           |          |          |         |            |              |
| Other Age  | ncies In                        | volved   | Wit  | h Conta  | act Name   | e And    | Numbe     | ers:     |          |         |            |              |
|  |                                 |          |      |          |            |          |           |          |          |         |            |              |
| Do you w<br>(i.e. if the   |                                 |          |      |          |            |          | in nurs   | sery)?   |          |         |            | No 🗌         |
| Are there here:-   | any add                         | ditiona  | l ne | eds ider | ntified? e | e.g. dis | sability  | . If yes | please   | state   |            | No 🗌         |
| Are there any known previous / current domestic abuse concerns known?              |                                 |          |      |          |            |          |           |          |          |         |            |              |
| Reason fo<br>o help):  | r Referr                        | al (plea | ase  | be spec  | ific abou  | ut how   | you fe    | el the   | school ı | nurse   | service m  | ight be able |
|  |                                 |          |      |          |            |          |           |          |          |         |            |              |
|  |                                 |          |      |          |            |          |           |          |          |         |            |              |
|  | Referr                          | ed By    | :    |          |            | De       | signat    | tion:    |          |         | Tel N      | No:          |
|  |                                 |          |      |          |            |          |           |          |          |         |            |              |
| Base:  |                                 |          |      |          |            |          |           |          | Date     |         |            |              |
| Email:   |                                 |          |      |          |            |          |           |          |          |         |            |              |
| The Lyng Centre for Health & Social Care Frank Fisher Way<br>West Bromwich B70 7AW |                                 |          |      |          |            |          |           |          |          |         |            |              |
|  | Fmail: swhh shnsandwell@nhs net |          |      |          |            |          |           |          |          |         |            |              |



| -   |       |  |
|-----|-------|--|
| NHS | Trust |  |

| Reply Slip        |             |                 |  |  |
|-------------------|-------------|-----------------|--|--|
| Date              |             |                 |  |  |
| Plan of Action of | or Outcome: |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             |                 |  |  |
|                   |             | 1               |  |  |
| Signed:           |             | Print Name:     |  |  |
| Designation:      |             | Contact Number: |  |  |
|                   |             | 1               |  |  |

The information that you supply on this form will be used by the Children and Young Peoples Services for the purpose of maintaining and improving the level of service given for young people within Sandwell MBC. All information is regarded as confidential and any data collected via this form will be processed or disclosed only within the limits of the data protection notification.

Please Ensure that this Form is kept Confidential

# Personal Care Plan 20/21

| Name:   |                          |                   |                              |                      |  |  |
|---|--------------------------|-------------------|------------------------------|----------------------|--|--|
| Date of Birth   |                          |                   |                              |                      |  |  |
| Name of Nursery / School  |                          |                   |                              |                      |  |  |
| Class: year   |                          |                   |                              |                      |  |  |
| Medical Condition: Sickle   | Cell Anaem               | ia (HbSS) or (HBS | C)                           |                      |  |  |
| Medication  |                          |                   |                              |                      |  |  |
| Medication  | Dose Given at hon (tick) |                   | To be given at school (tick) | Special instructions |  |  |
| Please ensure that medication is prescribed by the GP and stored correctly. Please check with family the timing of the previous dose to ensure the child is not 'Over dosed.'  NB. This child has open access to Birmingham Children's Hospital |                          |                   |                              |                      |  |  |
| Contact Informat  | ion:                     |                   |                              |                      |  |  |
| Family Contact  |                          |                   |                              |                      |  |  |
| Relationship  |                          |                   |                              |                      |  |  |
| Telephone Number  |                          |                   |                              |                      |  |  |

- ◆ Sickle Cell & Thalassaemia Unit Birmingham Children's Hospital Telephone: 0121 333 8861
- ◆ Dr S Lawson/Dr M Velangi/Dr J Lancashire, Consultant Paediatric Haematologists Location: Birmingham Children's Hospital (BCH) Telephone number: − 0121 333 9999
- Haemoglobinopathy Liaison Sisters:
   Isabel Adams 0121 333 8862 / 07780224106

**Hospital Contact:** 

| Lauren Kavanagh 0121 333 8862 / 07970445187 |  |
|---|--|
| G.P.:                                       |  |

#### Describe condition and give details of individual symptom

If.....complains of or indicates:-

- Pain in his/her arms or legs, check for any swelling, take to quiet area and encourage fluids, and give analgesia if provided by parents in a named bottle. Contact parents.
  If swelling and pain subsides following time in the designated area s/he can return to lesson, parents to be informed when collected. Discuss with parents strategies used at home. Please note, do not use icepacks on small bumps/scrapes.
- **Priapism**. A Painful erection or persistent erection (Priapism). Contact parents, if unavailable send to Emergency department (boys only).
- Fevers/infection. Becomes unwell with a high temperature, or shivering and complaining of feeling excessively cold. Contact parents, encourage fluid intake. If parents unavailable send to Emergency Department.
- > Splenic Sequestration. If child becomes pale, drowsy, fast heart beat, enlarged tummy (especially left side). Call 999 place child in comfortable position then call parents.
- > **Stroke**. Has a convulsion, or has unsteady walk, slurred speech weakness, acute changes in vision or partial or complete paralysis it could be a stroke, ensure child safe and comfortable and call an ambulance.
- ➤ Chest Crisis. Becomes breathless or coughing and having difficulty in breathing, experiencing chest pain, or pale please call an ambulance and inform parents.
- ➤ Be aware that most children with Sickle cell anaemia suffer with chronic Anaemia so may tire more easily. Unusual fatigue needs to be reported to parents.

#### Other Considerations:

- Ensure child is dressed appropriately for the environment e.g. Hat; gloves and scarf in winter.
- If there is an opportunity for the child to take swimming lessons, assess the pools temperature. If warm allow child to swim and make sure there is provision of two towels (one for body, one for head) by the poolside to allow the child to dry immediately after getting out of the water Discuss with parents.
- Children should be encouraged to take part in P.E lessons at school; however it is important to be aware that they may tire more easily, and may need rehydrating and respite during the lesson. Special provisions should be made during cold weather; either allow child to stay indoors, or assess that they have suitable clothing to ensure they do not get cold.
- Encourage fluids daily. If you are concerned that the student does not drink well please raise with parents.
- Some children may have delayed growth and pubertal development which may cause them to be embarrassed or even bullied.
- Some children experience yellowing of the whites of the eyes (the scelera). This is very common, and if the child is otherwise well this is nothing to be concerned about.
- Medication to be given as prescribed, following agreed protocol.
- Please allow the child to have regular toilet breaks, issue hall pass.
- Allow children with mobility issues to have a lift pass or make provision for timetable to be in close proximity where possible.
- Give child opportunity to have extra time during GCSE exam periods (including mock exams). The hospital can supply a letter of support if required.
- Please be aware that stress can be a trigger for painful episodes
- Support the child by providing work if appropriate- for example during a blood transfusion. Liaise with the family when child is absent.

If school have any questions about care please phone the Haemoglobinopathy Unit at Birmingham Children's and Women's hospital on 0121 333 8861. (Haemoglobinopathy Unit)

#### Care in an Emergency

- Contact family member and inform of condition. If the family member are unable to get to the school and school feel that Olivia. is in need of medical review call an ambulance.
- Contact the Haemoglobinopathy Unit and inform them that s/he will be brought to the hospital.
- Keep warm and encourage fluids if possible.
- ♦ Give analgesia if required

#### **Further Information (see contacts)**

Isabel Adams/Lauren Kavanagh Birmingham Childrens Hospital Haemoglobinopathy Unit Steel House lane B4 6NH

| Additional Health Requirements or Adaptations n | · ·  |
|---|------|
| Special Requests from Parents:                  |      |
| Date of Training Given: 13/10/20 Zoom           |      |
| Parent/ Guardian aware of teaching              | Date |
| School Nurse Name & Signature                   | Date |
| Teacher's Signature                             | Date |

Signed copy to be returned to Birmingham Childrens Hospital, Haemoglobinopathy Unit Please.